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BEFORE THE NEVADA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY  

In  Re: the impoundment  pursuant to NRS 706.476 of  )  Impound 5507 and  
a vehicle registered to  and  Citations 26036 for )  Citation  26036 and 25594 
violation of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758 and )  
25594 for violation of NRS 706A.280 issued to )  
Frederick Quillin.  )  
__________________________________________ )  

At a general session of the Nevada Transportation  
Authority held on December 11, 2025.  

PRESENT:    Chairman  Vaughn Hartung 
Commissioner  Adam Teti  
Commissioner  Louis  V. Csoka  
Deputy Commissioner Todd Park 

ORDER  

On  November 20, 2025, a hearing on the  above-captioned matter  was held before 

Commissioner  Adam Teti, serving in his  capacity  as Hearing  Officer for the Nevada Transportation  

Authority (“Authority”). The Respondent  to Citations 26036 and 25594 and registered owner of the  

impounded vehicle, Frederick Quillin, was present and elected to proceed without  legal counsel.   

After hearing the allegations, the respective  arguments, and having considered the evidence  

introduced by both parties and being fully advised, the Hearing Officer, pursuant to Nevada  

Administrative Code (“NAC”) 706.4015, prepared a proposed decision for  review by the Authority. 

Based on that proposed decision, the Authority enters the following final order affirming the  

decision of the Hearing Officer. Under Nevada  Revised Statutes (“NRS”) 706.151, the Authority  

has legal jurisdiction and authority over this matter.  

At hearing, the parties knowingly and voluntarily stipulated and agreed as follows:  

1. To the  admission of Citation 26036 and  25594 and the  Investigation Report for the Citations 

and related impound i nto evidence (identified as State’s Exhibit 1 and incorporated herein 

by reference)  and that the facts as set forth therein  were true and  accurate; 
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2.  That  Frederick Quillin  is the registered owner of  the impounded vehicle in this matter and  

was present at the hearing regarding said vehicle;  

3.  That the use of the vehicle in intrastate commerce without a certificate of public 

convenience and necessity (“CPCN”) violated NRS 706.476 (2)(b)(2)  and (3) in that:   

a.  No CPCN had been issued authorizing the use of the impounded vehicle in intrastate  

commerce  for passenger  transportation; and  

b.  The impounded vehicle did not meet the required standards of the  Authority;  

4.  That no certificate of public convenience  and necessity (“CPCN”) had been issued by the  

Authority authorizing the operations or advertising undertaken by the Respondent in this  

matter;  

5.  That the Respondent’s  actions constituted one  violation of NRS 706.386  and one violation 

of NRS 706.758 a s  alleged and that the impoundment of the vehicle  pursuant to NRS  

706.476 was proper;  

6.  That with respect to Citation 25594, the Respondent’s actions constituted a  violation of NRS  

706A.280 (in that they solicited a passenger for off-app transportation);  

7.  That a fine in the amount of $1,000.00 be assessed for the impoundment of the vehicle in  

this matter;  

8.  To a fine in the amount  of $5,000.00 for the NRS 706.386 violation  with $4,500.00 of said  

fine amount suspended pending no further violations of NRS 706 or  NAC 706 within  two  

years  and timely payment of fine  amount;  

9.  To a fine in the amount  of $1,000.00 for the NRS 706.758 violation with $1,000.00 of said  

fine amount suspended pending no further violations of NRS 706 or NAC 706 within two  

years and timely payment of the NRS 706.386 fine amount;  

10.  That no fine or disqualification be imposed for the  NRS 706A.280  violation; and  
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11.  To waive the requirement that the Authority’s final order contain formal Findings of  Fact  

and Conclusions of Law  as required under NRS 233B.125.    

DISCUSSION  
 
 The Hearing Officer  recommended to the Authority:  

1.  That the stipulations and agreements of the parties as set forth hereinabove  be accepted; and  

2.  That findings enter against the Respondents  for  one violation of NRS 706.386, related to 

operating as a  fully regulated carrier  without authority, one violation of NRS 706.758, 

related to advertising the services of  a fully regulated carrier without authority, and one  

violation of NRS 706A.280, related  to providing passenger transportation services outside  

the TNC application.  

ORDER  

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED, based on the foregoing:  

1.  That the recommendation of the Hearing Officer with regard to the impoundment of the  

vehicle pursuant to NRS 706.476 is hereby AFFIRMED;  

2.  That the recommendation of the Hearing Officer regarding Administrative Citations  and 

Verified Complaint 26036 and 25594, issued to  Frederick Quillin  for violations  of NRS  

706.386, NRS 706.758 and NRS 706A.280, is hereby AFFIRMED;  

3.  That  a  fine  in the amount of  One Thousand D ollars and Zero Cents ($1,000.00)  be assessed  

for the impoundment of the vehicle in this matter;  

4.  That the total fine for  Citation Number  26036  shall be in the amount of  Six  Thousand 

Dollars and Zero Cents ($6,000.00), with  Five  Thousand Five Hundred  Dollars  and Zero  

Cents ($5,500.00) of said fine  amount to be suspended pending no further  violations of  NRS  

706 or NAC 706 within  two  years  and timely payment of fine amount;  

https://5,500.00
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5.  That the no fine  or disqualification be imposed for Citation Number  25594  for the  NRS  

706A.280 violation;  

6.  That the Respondent is  to immediately  CEASE AND DESIST  any and all operation in  

violation of NRS 706.386;  

7.  That pursuant to NRS 706.758, the Respondent is to immediately  CEASE AND DESIST  

any unlawful advertising; and  

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 
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8.  That the Authority retains jurisdiction for correcting any errors that may have occurred in  

the drafting or issuance of this Order.  

By the Authority, 
 
 

____________________________________ 
Vaughn Hartung, Chairman  
 
 
       
Adam Teti, Commissioner  
 
 
       
Louis V. Csoka, Commissioner  

 
 
Attest:  __________________________________ 

Todd Park, Deputy Commissioner  
 

Dated:  __________________________________ 
Las Vegas, Nevada  

 
NOTICE: Pursuant to NRS 233B.130, any party to this matter aggrieved by the above final decision may file a  petition  
for rehearing or reconsideration.  A petition for rehearing or reconsideration must be filed with the Authority within 15 
days after the date the party received this Order.  
 
NOTICE:  In accordance with NAC 706.229 and NAC 706.3751 (both recently amended, see Legislative Counsel  
Bureau File No. R111-10),  you may be disqualified from driving taxicabs (outside of Clark County) or charter  
limousines (statewide) if you fail to pay a  fine owed to the Authority, you fail to appear  for a  hearing on an  
administrative  citation,  and/or  you are  found in violation of  the  provisions  of  NRS  706 or  NAC  706 more  than five  
times within three years.  
 
NOTICE: Pursuant to NRS 706.772 and NRS 706 483.441,  you may have your driver’s license suspended by the  
Nevada Department  of Motor  Vehicles if you fail to pay the  full amount of the administrative fine and any other costs  
which are due to the Authority as a result of the above  final  Order.   
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BEFORE THE NEVADA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY  

In Re: Citation  24921  issued to Seiji, LLC d/b/a  )  Citation  24921 
Seiji Limousine, Winner Limousine  for violation  of  )  
NAC 706.2473 ref. 49 CFR 391.11(a) and NAC  ) 
706.229(1)(b).  
__________________________________________ 

At a general session of the Nevada Transportation  
Authority held on December 11, 2025.  

PRESENT:     Chairman Vaughn Hartung  
Commissioner  Adam Teti  
Commissioner  Louis V. Csoka  
Deputy Commissioner Todd Park  

ORDER  

Under Nevada Revised Statutes (“NRS”) 706.151, the Nevada Transportation Authority  

has legal jurisdiction and authority over the above  matter.    

On  November 12, 2025, pursuant to Nevada Administrative Code (“NAC”) 706.4014,  

Nevada Transportation Authority Staff and Respondent,  Seiji, LLC d/b/a Seiji Limousine,  

Winner Limousine  entered into a Settlement Agreement in the above matter.  The Settlement  

Agreement included  the  following terms and conditions as they relate to Administrative Citation  

and Verified Complaint  24921:  

1. Respondent  waived  their  rights  to a fully noticed hearing and to be represented by 

counsel and admitted to the violation as alleged in  the Citation. 

2. The parties stipulated to waive the requirement that the Authority’s final order contain 

formal Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law as required under NRS 233B.125. 
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3. The parties agreed  to a  total  fine in the  amount  of  Two  Hundred Dollars and Zero Cents 

($200.00)  (One Hundred Dollars and Zero Cents  [$100.00]  per count) for the  NAC 

706.2473 ref. 49 CFR 391.11(a) and NAC 706.229(1)(b)  violations. 

4. Upon entering into the Settlement Agreement,  Respondent deposited with the Nevada 

Transportation Authority the currently due portion of the agreed fine. 

The Staff submitted the aforementioned Settlement Agreement to the Authority  for 

review and approval.  

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 
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IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED, upon review and for good cause shown, that the  

Settlement Agreement in the above matter is  HEREBY APPROVED.  

The Authority retains jurisdiction for correcting any errors that may have occurred in the  

drafting or issuance of this Order.  

 
By the Authority,  

 
  

___________________________________ 
Vaughn Hartung, Chairman  
 
 
____________________________________ 
Adam Teti, Commissioner  
 
 
      

 Louis V. Csoka, Commissioner  
 
 
Attest:         

Todd Park,  Deputy Commissioner  
 
Dated:         

Las Vegas, Nevada  
 
NOTICE: Pursuant to NRS 233B.130,  any party  to this  matter aggrieved by the above final decision may file  a  
petition for rehearing or reconsideration.  A petition for rehearing or reconsideration must  be filed with  the  
Authority within 15 days after the date the party received this Order.  
 
NOTICE:  In accordance with NAC 706.229 and NAC 706.3751 (both recently amended, see  Legislative Counsel  
Bureau File No.  R111-10),  you may be disqualified from  driving taxicabs (outside  of  Clark County) or charter 
limousines (statewide) if you fail  to pay a  fine  owed to  the Authority, you fail to appear for  a hearing on  an 
administrative citation,  and/or you  are  found in violation of the  provisions  of NRS 706 or  NAC 706  more  than  five  
times within  three years.  
 
NOTICE: Pursuant to NRS 706.772 and NRS 706 483.441, you may have your driver’s license suspended by the  
Nevada Department of Motor Vehicles  if you fail to pay the  full amount  of the administrative fine  and any other  
costs which  are due  to the Authority as a result of the  above final Order.   
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BEFORE THE NEVADA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY  

In the Matter of the  Application of  Top Notch )  

Towing, LLC  for a Certificate of Public  )  

Convenience and Necessity to provide  consent-only )  Docket  25-07029  

tow car service  within the State of Nevada. )  

) 

    )  

At a  general session of the Nevada  Transportation 

Authority held on December 11, 2025.  

PRESENT:  Chairman Vaughn Hartung  

Commissioner Adam Teti  

Commissioner Louis Csoka  

Deputy Commissioner  Todd Park  

ORDER  

The  Nevada  Transportation Authority ("Authority") makes the following findings of fact 

and conclusions of law:  

1. That on July 25, 2025, Top Notch Towing, LLC  (“Applicant”)  filed an  Application with 

the Authority for a  Certificate  of Public  Convenience  and  Necessity to provide consent-

only tow car  service  by  tow car vehicle  within the  State  of Nevada. Said Application was 

designated as Docket 25-07029. 

2. That the Application was properly noticed to the  public  and  no Petitions for  Leave  to 

Intervene or Protests were filed. 

3. That based on all  records relating to the Application, after investigation, and pursuant to 

NRS 706.4463: 

a. The  Application on file  herein comes within the purview of the statutes of the  State  of 

Nevada  and within the regulatory jurisdiction of the Authority. 

b. The Applicant complies with the requirements set forth in NRS 706.4463. 

c. The  operation contemplated by Applicant will  be  consistent with the public  interest and 

will not operate to defeat the legislative policy set forth in NRS 706.151. 
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Therefore, based upon the foregoing findings, it is ORDERED that:  

1.  Upon full compliance  with the conditions of this Order, a  Certificate of Public  Convenience  

and Necessity identified as CPCN  7712  shall  be  issued to Top Notch Towing, LLC  as  

specified below:   

On-call, irregular  route  transportation of vehicles requiring tow car service  by tow 

car vehicle;  

 

Between points and places within the State of Nevada.  

 

Restriction: Holder shall perform consent-only tows.   

 

2.  Before  issuance  of the Certificate referred to hereinabove, the Applicant shall  be  required  

to:  

a.  Avoid material changes in any conditions relied upon by the Authority in its  

determination of operational fitness and immediately report to Authority Staff  any  

such material changes, should they occur. (Form provided by NTA)  

 

b.  File  with the  Authority  evidence  (Form E)  in the motor  carrier’s name in  
accordance with NAC 706.193.  

 

c.  File  with the Authority the necessary insurance  (Certificate of Insurance  and  

Schedule of  Autos) describing the liability limits and vehicles  covered in  

accordance with NAC 706.191.  

 

d.  Make  vehicle(s)  available  for  inspection by Authority Staff to ensure  that  they 

properly display the  CPCN number, logo and/or  name of  the motor carrier and  

any other  required markings in accordance  with NAC 706.170. Provide copies of 

the insurance  cab card, annual (USDOT) vehicle  inspections, titles, and 

registrations. All documents must reflect the approved motor carrier name.  

 

e.  Ensure  driver qualification files are  setup in accordance  with 49 CFR  391.51.  

Make  available to Authority Staff for  inspection of business and vehicle  

domiciles. Ensure  all  drivers have  pre-employment drug testing in accordance  

with title  49, Parts 40  and 382. Explain  and make  available  for inspection set-up 

of time tracking method put into place.  

 

f.  Ensure vehicle maintenance files are setup in accordance  with 49 CFR 396.  

 

g.  Provide  a  copy of the tow invoice  which includes the name of the  motor carrier, 

address and CPCN number granted.  
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h.  Provide a copy of  a dispatch log in accordance  with NRS 706.4465.  

 

i.  File  a  tariff  for  review by the Financial Analyst, which includes a  description of  

the authority granted, CPCN number, the motor carrier  name, d/b/a, name and 

title of the issuing officer, and address.  

 

j.  Apply for  Tow Car  Plates and pay all  associated  fees  in accordance  with  NRS  

706.451.  

 

k.  Provide a copy of the Nevada Highway Patrol Flashing Amber Light Permit.  

 

l.  Provide a copy of  applicable local business license(s).  

 

m.  Provide  a  copy of the contract between Applicant and the laboratory that will  

perform  and monitor  the substance  abuse  program. If  the owner  will  also serve  as  

driver, the  contract must require  the laboratory  to provide  results of positive  

drug/alcohol tests directly to the Authority.  

 

n.  Remit to the Authority any noticing fees and/or other outstanding debt due  to the  

Authority.  

 

3.  Compliance  with the  foregoing requirements must be  made  NO LATER  THAN one  

hundred and twenty (120) days after issuance  of this Order. If the Applicant fails to 

comply within one  hundred and twenty (120)  days after issuance  of this Order, the  

Deputy Commissioner may vacate this Order and dismiss this Application.  

4.  This Order  does not constitute  operating authority. Performance  of the  

transportation  services contemplated  by this  Order  may not be  instituted  prior 

to the issuance of the Certificate referred to hereinabove.  

5.  If  Applicant is cited by the  Authority for any  violation of NRS  706 or  NAC  706 prior  

to the issuance  of the above-referenced Certificate, the Deputy Commissioner shall  

vacate  this Order and dismiss the Application, unless the Authority orders otherwise.  

6.  The  Deputy Commissioner shall  be  authorized  to issue  a  Certificate of Public  

Convenience  and Necessity upon Applicant’s compliance  with all  requirements set 

forth hereinabove.   
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7.  The  Authority retains jurisdiction for  the purpose  of correcting any errors  that may  

have occurred in the drafting or issuance of this Order.  

 

By the Authority,  

 

 

___________________________________  

Vaughn Hartung, Chairman  

 

 

 

____________________________________  

 Adam Teti, Commissioner  

 

 

___________________________________  

Louis Csoka, Commissioner  

 

 

Attest:         

Todd Park,  Deputy Commissioner  

 

 

Dated:         

Las Vegas, Nevada  
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